
 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

MAY 16, 2023 - 7:00 P.M. 

(810) 629-8631 
 

CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 7:00 P.M. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 
 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – April 4, 2023 

2. Treasurer’s Report – March 31, 2023 

3. Treasurer’s Report – April 30, 2023 

4. Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – May 9, 2023 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Livingston County Sheriff Report – March 31, 2023 

2. Fire service report – May 10, 2023 
 

PUBLIC REMARKS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Andrew Zourab request to appeal his fire service charge. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Milarch Agri-business Special Land Use request. 

2. Road improvement agreement for Runyan Lake Rd. (White Lake Rd. to township border). 

3. Road improvement agreement for Runyan Lake Rd. (Gordon Rd. to township hall). 

4. Road improvement agreement for Hartland Rd. (Windy Ridge to township border). 

5. Sewer Rate Policy amendments. 

6. Historic townhouse mold and pest remediation. 

7. Resolution to recognize Fenton Youth Shooting Association as a nonprofit organization to 

obtain a charitable gaming license. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC REMARKS  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

Supervisor Mike Cunningham             Clerk Pam Moughler 
 

Please note: Anyone wishing to address the Township Board may do so during Public Remarks. The Tyrone Township 

Board of Trustees has established a policy limiting the time a person may address the Township Board at a regular or at a 

special meeting during the Public Remarks section of the agenda to three minutes. The Board reserves the right to place an 

issue under the New Business section of the agenda if additional discussion is warranted or to respond later either verbally 

or in writing through an appropriately appointed Township Official. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids 

or services should contact the Tyrone Township Clerk at (810) 629-8631 at least seven days prior to the meeting. 



  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – April 4, 2023 
2. Treasurer’s Report – March 31, 2023 
3. Treasurer’s Report – April 30, 2023 
4. Clerk’s Warrants and Bills – May 9, 2023 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – APRIL 4, 2023 – PAGE 1 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor Cunningham called the meeting of the Tyrone Township Board to order with the 

Pledge of Allegiance on April 4, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone Township Hall.  

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Supervisor Mike Cunningham, Clerk Pam Moughler, Trustees Herman Ferguson, Kurt 

Schulze, Zach Tucker, and David Walker.  Absent: Treasurer Jennifer Eden. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the agenda as presented. (Trustee Schulze seconded.) The 

motion carried; all ayes.  

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – March 28, 2023 

 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. (Trustee Ferguson 

seconded.) The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

None. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  (continued on next page) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – APRIL 4, 2023 – PAGE 2 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution to recognize Fenton Pride Collective as a nonprofit organization to 

obtain a charitable gaming license. 

 

 
 



 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – APRIL 4, 2023 – PAGE 3 

 

1. Moratorium on solar farms. 

 

RESOLUTION #230402 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

MORATORIUM ON SOLAR PROJECTS 

 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 P.A. being MCL 125.3101 et seq., 

authorizes Tyrone Township (the "Township") to adopt reasonable regulations to control the 

establishment and use of Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems in accordance with the 

Township's Master Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township has become aware of an increase of Commercial Large Scale 

Solar Energy Systems in the region, which is an emerging land use not sufficiently contemplated 

in the current Master Plan nor by the current zoning for anywhere in the Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township is beginning the process of reviewing the Master Plan 

and its zoning for the purpose of updating it to include recognition of Commercial Large Scale 

Solar Energy Systems in the Township as an emerging land use in the region; and 

 
WHEREAS, integration of Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems land use 

within the Township's existing land uses requires suitable regulations and controls to ensure 

compliance with the Township's Master Plan, among other things, by preserving agricultural 

property, and for the protection of general health, safety and welfare of all of the Township's 

residents; 

 
WHEREAS, this Board believes it is prudent and wise in light of the emergence of 

Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems land uses in the region, to assure proper locating 

and regulation of these land uses in the Township and must consider this Resolution for 

Moratorium on Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems so as to better protect the public 

health, safety, and Welfare of Township residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, imposing a moratorium, on a limited temporary basis, is reasonable and 

necessary in order to allow the Township to fully explore, analyze, research and develop 

proposed amendments to the Master Plan and the Township Zoning Ordinance, and to make 

recommendations to the Township Board regarding such amendments applicable to Commercial 

Large Scale Solar Energy Systems uses in the Township; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, a moratorium is hereby imposed upon the 

issuance of any and all permits, licenses, or approvals for any property subject to or under the 

jurisdiction of the Township's Zoning Ordinance for the establishment or use of any new 

Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems uses in the Township. The moratorium imposed 

by this Resolution shall remain in effect for six (6) months following the effective date of this 

Resolution, or until Commercial Large Scale Solar Energy Systems regulatory amendments to  



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – APRIL 4, 2023 – PAGE 4 

 

the Township's Zoning Ordinance become effective, whichever occurs first. Before this 

moratorium expires, the Township may by resolution extend the moratorium for up to six (6) 

months to allow sufficient time to complete amendments to its Master Plan and Zoning 

Ordinance, if necessary. If an extension is adopted, the Township will publish notice of the 

extension. 

RESOLVED BY:  Trustee Schulze 

SUPPORTED BY:  Trustee Ferguson 

  

VOTE:  Ferguson, yes; Tucker, yes; Schulze, yes; Tucker, yes; Walker, yes; Cunningham, yes; 

Moughler, yes; Eden, absent. 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  April 4, 2023 

 
CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on April 4, 2023, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

  

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

2. Commercial insurance policy renewal for township hall. 

 

Trustee Walker moved to renew the commercial ($18,141.00) and cybersecurity ($1,738.75) 

insurance policies for the township hall.  (Trustee Ferguson seconded.)  The motion carried; all 

ayes. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

Residents commented on local businesses and ARPA funds. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Ferguson moved to adjourn.  (Trustee Walker seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 



3/8/2023 TYRONE TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S REPORT

TD      Period ending March, 2023

INVESTMENTS Int MICHIGAN CLASS Int Rate FLG PEG CD Int Grand Totals Each

TOWNSHIP FUNDS Interest Ckg ICS Rate Monthly AVG. matures 8/9/22 rate Fund

General  101 $676,803.56 5,475,676.11$      2.22% 6,152,479.67$              

Tech Fund   141 $51,781.85 5,000.00$             2.22% $56,781.85

Building & Site   145 $137,255.67 7,500.00$             2.22% $144,755.67

Parks/Recreation   208 $5,934.23 0.40% $5,934.23

Liquor Control   212 0.40% $0.00

Road   245 $369,411.46 44,224.80$           2.22% $269,612.36 1.00% 683,248.62$                 

Revolving   246 $249,966.26 97,500.00$           0.40% $198,059.20 1.00% 545,525.46$                 

Right of Way   259 $33,944.12 0.40% $33,944.12

Peg 274 $226,968.32 194,844.91$    0.20% $421,813.23

Lk Tyrone Grant 281 0.40% $0.00

Special Assessments

Jayne Hill Lts   218 $1,250.29 0.40% $1,250.29

Walnut Shores Lts  219 $768.82 0.40% $768.82

Shannon Glen Rubbish 225 $6,831.34 $6,831.34

Jayne Hill Rubbish Removal 226 $23,587.98 0.40% $23,587.98

Apple Orchard Rubbish Removal 230 $7,698.34 $7,698.34

Great Oaks Dr 232 $12,014.16 0.40% $12,014.16

Laural Springs Rubbish removal 233 $8,336.60 $8,336.60

Silver Lake Rubbish Removal 234 $16,356.28 $16,356.28

Parkin Lane Snow 238 $17,889.64 0.40% $17,889.64

Account Totals $1,846,798.92 5,629,900.91$       $467,671.56  194,844.91$    8,139,216.30$              

Health Flex Spending 101 The State Bank Health Flex Total

FSA Account ($10K Loan to Open) 12,991.42$           0.00% 12,991.42$                   

12,991.42$                   

Public Safety- 205 Public Safety Total

Public Safety  205 - State Bank checking 589,839.05$         0.40% 589,839.05$                 

Public Safety 205- State Bank Savings 6,409.60$             6,409.60$                     

Public Safety 205 - Level One Bank 205,853.73$         0.40% 205,853.73$                 

Public Safety ICS- 205 State Bank 785,189.91$         2.22% 785,189.91$                 

  1,587,292.29$              

SEWER O&M CHECKING ACCT- 590   Flagstar Sewer O&M Total

Sewer Operation and Maintenance CK  (5710) 214,321.55$         0.70% 214,321.55$                 

Sewer Operation and Maintenance SV   (4865) 4,983.26$             1.39% 4,983.26$                     

CIBC- O&M CD(matures 8/9/2023)(6337) 163,418.19$         0.20% 163,418.19$                 

O&M CDARS (matures 8/10/2023)(8623) 144,411.00$         1.50% 144,411.00$                 

O&M CDARS (matures 8/10/2023)(4710) 146,632.82$         0.20% 146,632.82$                 

673,766.82$                 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEWER 2003- 599 Flagstar/CIBC  Tyrone Sewer 03 Total

Debt Service  599 Flagstar Bank 1,267,536.36$      0.6% 1,267,536.36$              

Flagstar CDARS 2003 (matures 4/20/2023)(6643) 548,367.12$         0.80% 548,367.12$                 

CIBC CD 2003 (matures 3/28/24)(8551) 1,011,815.92$      0.90% 1,011,815.92$              

Flagstar CDARS 2003 Fund Matures 3/14/2024(1142) 475,355.94$         0.15% 475,355.94$                 

3,303,075.34$              

TRUST & AGENCY- 701 Chase Trust & Agency Total

Township Trust and Agency 701 Savings 1,515.16$             0.18% 1,515.16$                     

Township Trust and Agency 701 Checking 15,078.92$           0.00% 15,078.92$                   

 16,594.08$                   

Road Improvements- Flagstar  Road Improvement Total

Parkin Lane Rd 2010    (858) 63,083.43$           0.70% 63,083.43$                   

Lake Shannon 2018 (863) 381,808.27$         0.70% 381,808.27$                 

Laurel springs (864) 58,363.67$           0.70% 58,363.67$                   

Irish Hills (865) 235,873.95$         235,873.95$                 

CIBC- Parkin Lane CD(matures 8/9/2023) 1515 98,112.95$           0.20% 98,112.95$                   

837,242.27$                 

6,430,962.22$              

Total Township  Monies 14,570,178.52$            



TYRONE TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S REPORT

TD      Period ending April, 2023

INVESTMENTS Int MICHIGAN CLASS Int Rate FLG PEG CD Int Grand Totals Each

TOWNSHIP FUNDS Interest Ckg ICS Rate Monthly AVG. matures 8/9/23 rate Fund

General  101 $795,760.26 5,488,919.82$     2.99% 6,284,680.08$             

Tech Fund   141 $51,781.85 5,000.00$            2.99% $56,781.85

Building & Site   145 $137,255.67 7,500.00$            2.99% $144,755.67

Parks/Recreation   208 $5,934.23 0.40% $5,934.23

Liquor Control   212 0.40% $0.00

Road   245 $369,411.46 44,224.80$          2.22% $270,726.82 4.85% 684,363.08$                

Revolving   246 $249,966.26 97,500.00$          0.40% $198,877.89 4.85% 546,344.15$                

Right of Way   259 $30,694.12 0.40% $30,694.12

Peg 274 $226,968.32 194,844.91$   2.70% $421,813.23

Lk Tyrone Grant 281 0.40% $0.00

Special Assessments

Jayne Hill Lts   218 $1,161.54 0.40% $1,161.54

Walnut Shores Lts  219 $757.73 0.40% $757.73

Shannon Glen Rubbish 225 $6,295.73 $6,295.73

Jayne Hill Rubbish Removal 226 $18,747.98 0.40% $18,747.98

Apple Orchard Rubbish Removal 230 $5,976.34 $5,976.34

Great Oaks Dr 232 $11,939.16 0.40% $11,939.16

Laural Springs Rubbish removal 233 $6,866.60 $6,866.60

Silver Lake Rubbish Removal 234 $12,531.28 $12,531.28

Parkin Lane Snow 238 $16,888.64 0.40% $16,888.64

Account Totals $1,948,937.17 5,643,144.62$      $469,604.71  194,844.91$   8,256,531.41$             

Health Flex Spending 101 The State Bank Health Flex Total

FSA Account ($10K Loan to Open) 12,488.34$          0.00% 12,488.34$                  

12,488.34$                  

Public Safety- 205 Public Safety Total

Public Safety  205 - State Bank checking 527,185.55$        0.40% 527,185.55$                

Public Safety 205- State Bank Savings 6,410.54$            3.04% 6,410.54$                    

Public Safety 205 - First Merchant 205,880.80$        0.16% 205,880.80$                

Public Safety ICS- 205 State Bank 787,128.28$        2.22% 787,128.28$                

  1,526,605.17$             

SEWER O&M CHECKING ACCT- 590   Flagstar Sewer O&M Total

Sewer Operation and Maintenance CK  (5710) 444,568.12$        0.95% 444,568.12$                

Sewer Operation and Maintenance SV   (4865) 4,998.62$            3.75% 4,998.62$                    

CIBC- O&M CD(matures 8/9/2023)(6337) 163,418.19$        2.55% 163,418.19$                

O&M CDARS (matures 8/10/2023)(8623) 144,411.00$        2.50% 144,411.00$                

O&M CDARS (matures 8/10/2023)(4710) 146,632.82$        2.70% 146,632.82$                

904,028.75$                

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEWER 2003- 599 Flagstar/CIBC  Tyrone Sewer 03 Total

Debt Service  599 Flagstar Bank 360,033.42$        1.0% 360,033.42$                

Flagstar CDARS 2003 (matures 4/18/2023)(2241) 552,742.01$        0.80% 552,742.01$                

CIBC CD 2003 (matures 3/28/24)(8551) 1,015,272.88$     4.15% 1,015,272.88$             

Flagstar CDARS 2003 Fund Matures 3/14/2024(1142) 475,355.94$        4.57% 475,355.94$                

2,403,404.25$             

TRUST & AGENCY- 701 Chase Trust & Agency Total

Township Trust and Agency 701 Savings 1,515.22$            0.05% 1,515.22$                    

Township Trust and Agency 701 Checking 14,666.11$          0.00% 14,666.11$                  

 16,181.33$                  

Road Improvements- Flagstar  Road Improvement Total

Parkin Lane Rd 2010    (858) 63,131.17$          0.95% 63,131.17$                  

Lake Shannon 2018 (863) 384,802.38$        0.95% 384,802.38$                

Laurel springs (864) 58,407.84$          0.95% 58,407.84$                  

Irish Hills (865) 236,052.43$        0.95% 236,052.43$                

CIBC- Parkin Lane CD(matures 8/9/2023) 1515 98,112.95$          2.55% 98,112.95$                  

840,506.77$                

5,703,214.61$             

Total Township  Monies 13,959,746.02$           



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 1/2Page: 05/09/2023 03:39 PM
User: Casey
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 03/24/2023 - 05/09/2023

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 001 STATE BANK COMMON ACCOUNT

1,026.60 AFLACAFLAC2347900104/04/2023
670.00 APEX SOFTWARE1182348000104/04/2023
801.23 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD2348100104/04/2023
476.27 CONSUMERS ENERGY412348200104/04/2023

11,857.00 DOUGIE'S DISPOSAL & RECYCLINGDOUGIES2348300104/04/2023
51.00 GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS, INCGRIFFIN2348400104/04/2023
424.50 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER8712348500104/04/2023
10.00 MASTERS, KRISTINAMASTERSKRI2348600104/04/2023
599.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL TREASURERS8302348700104/04/2023
526.53 PRECISION DATA PRODUCTSPRECISION2348800104/04/2023
535.61 REPUBLIC SERVICES#2374392348900104/04/2023
196.28 RICOH USA INCRICOH LEAS2349000104/04/2023
334.26 STAPLES  ADVANTAGE252349100104/04/2023
232.99 STERICYCLE, INC1732349200104/04/2023
280.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2349300104/04/2023
237.84 WASTE MANAGEMENT3032349400104/04/2023

2,650.00 ZASKI ACCOUNTING, LLCZASKI2349500104/04/2023
229.07 AT&T MOBILITYAT&T MOBIL2349600104/11/2023

3,777.50 CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INCCWA2349700104/11/2023
2,883.53 CITY OF FENTON972349800104/11/2023
221.87 CONSUMERS ENERGY412349900104/11/2023
46.38 CONSUMERS ENERGY412350000104/11/2023

4,042.50 HARRIS & LITERSKI ATTORNEYS AT1272350100104/11/2023
125.00 IVS COMM, INC.IVS COMM2350200104/11/2023
226.17 PRECISION DATA PRODUCTSPRECISION2350300104/11/2023
19.00 PRECISION DATA PRODUCTSPRECISION2350400104/11/2023

3,250.00 RONALD'S TREE SERVICE LLCRONALD2350500104/11/2023
1,001.00 SHOEMAKER SERVICES INC2592350600104/11/2023

75.00 SHOEMAKER SERVICES INC2592350700104/11/2023
600.00 SHOEMAKER SERVICES INC2592350800104/11/2023
700.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE, LLCSUNSET2350900104/11/2023
702.00 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUPVIEW NEWS2351000104/11/2023

V85.00 APEX SOFTWARE1182351100104/18/2023
V10,677.89 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2972351200104/18/2023
V1,326.00 BS&A SOFTWARE, INC.1112351300104/18/2023
V30.00 BURNHAM & FLOWER OF MICHIGAN122351400104/18/2023
V1,975.00 CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INCCWA2351500104/18/2023
V203.82 FENTON PRINTING512351600104/18/2023
V33.00 INTERSTATE SIGN PRODUCTS INC.1502351700104/18/2023
V400.00 PAGE, KIRK & SHELLYPAGEK2351800104/18/2023
V196.28 RICOH USA INCRICOH LEAS2351900104/18/2023
V1,030.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2352000104/18/2023

85.00 APEX SOFTWARE1182352100104/18/2023
10,677.89 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2972352200104/18/2023
1,326.00 BS&A SOFTWARE, INC.1112352300104/18/2023

30.00 BURNHAM & FLOWER OF MICHIGAN122352400104/18/2023
1,975.00 CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INCCWA2352500104/18/2023
203.82 FENTON PRINTING512352600104/18/2023
33.00 INTERSTATE SIGN PRODUCTS INC.1502352700104/18/2023
400.00 PAGE, KIRK & SHELLYPAGEK2352800104/18/2023
196.28 RICOH USA INCRICOH LEAS2352900104/18/2023

1,030.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2353000104/18/2023
1,026.60 AFLACAFLAC2353100105/02/2023
129.98 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS1082353200105/02/2023

V1,113.81 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD2353300105/02/2023
481.27 CONSUMERS ENERGY412353400105/02/2023
51.00 GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS, INCGRIFFIN2353500105/02/2023
217.22 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER8712353600105/02/2023
725.00 MICHIGAN ASSOC OF PLANNING2072353700105/02/2023
533.06 REPUBLIC SERVICES#2374392353800105/02/2023
280.00 VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST COMPANYVOYA2353900105/02/2023

1,925.00 ZASKI ACCOUNTING, LLCZASKI2354000105/02/2023
1,081.84 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD2354100105/02/2023
268.64 CONSUMERS ENERGY412354200105/09/2023

1,065.48 HAMILTON'S PROPANEHAMILT GAS2354300105/09/2023
125.00 IVS COMM, INC.IVS COMM2354400105/09/2023
30.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY ASSESSOR'S ASSOC.9332354500105/09/2023
490.05 PRECISION DATA PRODUCTSPRECISION2354600105/09/2023
459.20 RICOH USA, INC.RICOH USA2354700105/09/2023
441.39 STAPLES  ADVANTAGE252354800105/09/2023
560.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE, LLCSUNSET2354900105/09/2023

1,072.50 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUPVIEW NEWS2355000105/09/2023

001 TOTALS:

65,728.35 Total of 61 Disbursements:

17,070.80 Less 11 Void Checks:
82,799.15 Total of 72 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 2/2Page: 05/09/2023 03:39 PM
User: Casey
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 03/24/2023 - 05/09/2023

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 022 STATE BANK - PUBLIC SAFETY checking

4,383.00 HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT176135002204/04/2023
37,986.00 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF FENTON19135102204/11/2023
20,454.00 CITY OF FENTON FIRE DEPARTMENT16135202204/18/2023

28.00 ROSATI,SCHULTZ,JOPPICH&AMTSBUECHLER121135302204/18/2023
V26.50 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD135402205/02/2023

10,287.00 HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT176135502205/02/2023
58.47 CHASE CARD SERVICECHASE CARD135602205/02/2023

22,140.00 CITY OF FENTON FIRE DEPARTMENT16135702205/09/2023
40,462.25 LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT938135802205/09/2023

022 TOTALS:

135,798.72 Total of 8 Disbursements:

26.50 Less 1 Void Checks:
135,825.22 Total of 9 Checks:

Bank 101 FLAGSTAR-SEWER DEBT-CKG

499,800.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER931119910104/04/2023
408,200.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER931120010104/04/2023

101 TOTALS:

908,000.00 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
908,000.00 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank 102 SEWER O&M CHECKING 590

68,412.20 LIVINGSTON COUNTY DRAIN COMM.2448010204/18/2023
97,671.48 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9648110205/02/2023
6,561.59 TYRONE TOWNSHIP9648210205/02/2023

102 TOTALS:

172,645.27 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
172,645.27 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank 203 TRUST & AGENCY 701 CKG

5.58 CROMAINE LIBRARYCROMAINE201920304/04/2023
121.39 GISDGISD202020304/04/2023
38.43 HARTLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS706202120304/04/2023
13.06 LESALESA202220304/04/2023
177.38 LINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS945202320304/04/2023
75.62 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871202420304/04/2023
175.05 MOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGEMOTT 202520304/04/2023
92.00 TYRONE TOWNSHIP96202620304/04/2023

2,285.00 LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER871202720304/18/2023
457.06 TYRONE TOWNSHIP96202820304/18/2023

203 TOTALS:

3,440.57 Total of 10 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
3,440.57 Total of 10 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

1,285,612.91 Total of 84 Disbursements:

17,097.30 Less 12 Void Checks:
1,302,710.21 Total of 96 Checks:



COMMUNICATION #1 
 

Livingston County Sheriff Report- March 31, 
2023 

 
 



LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

MARCH 2023 CALLS FOR SERVICE

MICHIGAN STATE POLICE

MARCH 2023 CALLS FOR SERVICE



Nature # Events

911 HANG UP 2

ALARM 4

ANIMAL COMPLAINT 4

ASSIST EMS 12

ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT 3

ASSIST OTHER AGENCY 3

CARDIAC/RESPIRATORY ARREST 1

CITIZEN ASSIST 5

CIVIL COMPLAINT 7

CO MEDICAL NEEDED 1

CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT REPORT 1

DHS REFERRALS 1

DISTURBANCE/TROUBLE 3

DOMESTIC PHYSICAL IN PROGRESS 2

DOMESTIC VERBAL 5

FRAUD 7

HAZARD 7

LARCENY 3

MDOP 2

MENTAL/CMH/PSYCH 1

MOTORIST ASSIST 2

OVERDOSE/INGESTION 1

PATROL INFORMATION 2

PDA 14

PERSONAL INJURY ACCIDENT 2

PHYSICAL DOMES REPORT ONLY 1

PUBLIC SERVICE 1

REPO INFO 1

SUICIDAL SUBJECT 1

SUSPICIOUS PERSON 2

SUSPICIOUS SITUATION 7

SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 2

UNCONSCIOUS/FAINTING 1

WELFARE CHECK 9

TOTAL: 120

LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

TYRONE TOWNSHIP MARCH 2023



NUMBER OF RESPONSE TIME NUMBER OF 

CALLS CONTRACT TIME CALLS

TOWNSHIP 3:00PM - 11:00PM 3:00PM - 11:00PM 11:00PM - 3:00PM

BRIGHTON 32 38:45 97

COHOCTAH 18 49:56 13

CONWAY 8 25:06 13

DEERFIELD 8 22:53 16

GENOA 100 25:01 144

HANDY 27 28:07 36

HARTLAND 82 25:52 141

HOWELL 47 29:16 70

IOSCO 20 34:32 22

MARION 23 49:53 48

OCEOLA 36 38:16 45

PUTNAM 33 20:58 25

TYRONE 73 16:35 47



RESPONSE TIME

NON CONTRACT TIME

11:00PM - 3:00PM TOTAL

43:25 129

41:03 31

30:25 21

43:06 24

23:37 244

23:58 63

28:02 223

24:05 117

31:17 42

30:18 71

43:29 81

35:19 58

54:42 120



MONTH CALLS FOR SERVICE TICKETS WRITTEN ARRESTS

JANUARY 118 21 0

FEBRUARY 84 14 1

MARCH 120 26 2

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

YTD TOTALS: 322 61 3

TYRONE TOWNSHIP



BRIGHTON COHOCTAH CONWAY DEERFIELD

JANUARY 117 JANUARY 31 JANUARY 23 JANUARY 36

FEBRUARY 104 FEBRUARY 31 FEBRUARY 12 FEBRUARY 33

MARCH 129 MARCH 31 MARCH 21 MARCH 24

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 350 93 56 93

JANUARY 37 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 1 JANUARY 3

FEBRUARY 36 FEBRUARY 4 FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 2

MARCH 44 MARCH 3 MARCH 3 MARCH 8

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 117 8 6 13

JANUARY 1 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 0 JANUARY 0

FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 1 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 0

MARCH 5 MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 1

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 7 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

YTD TOTAL: 15 3 0 1

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS



HANDYGENOA HARTLAND HOWELL

JANUARY 232 JANUARY 64 JANUARY 215 JANUARY 129

FEBRUARY 183 FEBRUARY 46 FEBRUARY 170 FEBRUARY 111

MARCH 244 MARCH 63 MARCH 223 MARCH 117

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

659 173 608 357

JANUARY 72 JANUARY 27 JANUARY 45 JANUARY 61

FEBRUARY 61 FEBRUARY 13 FEBRUARY 33 FEBRUARY 69

MARCH 67 MARCH 14 MARCH 39 MARCH 42

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

200 54 117 172

JANUARY 4 JANUARY 5 JANUARY 0 JANUARY 7

FEBRUARY 5 FEBRUARY 3 FEBRUARY 0 FEBRUARY 6

MARCH 5 MARCH 1 MARCH 5 MARCH 2

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

14 9 5 15

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS



IOSCO MARION OCEOLA PUTNAM

JANUARY 26 JANUARY 54 JANUARY 73 JANUARY 61

FEBRUARY 36 FEBRUARY 70 FEBRUARY 77 FEBRUARY 64

MARCH 42 MARCH 71 MARCH 81 MARCH 58

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

104 195 231 183

JANUARY 7 JANUARY 13 JANUARY 22 JANUARY 2

FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 14 FEBRUARY 21 FEBRUARY 1

MARCH 2 MARCH 14 MARCH 22 MARCH 5

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

15 41 65 8

JANUARY 1 JANUARY 2 JANUARY 0 JANUARY 2

FEBRUARY 2 FEBRUARY 4 FEBRUARY 6 FEBRUARY 2

MARCH 2 MARCH 0 MARCH 0 MARCH 1

APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0 APRIL 0

MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0 MAY 0

JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0 JUNE 0

JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0 JULY 0

AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0 AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0 SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0 OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0 NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0 DECEMBER 0

5 6 6 5

CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE CALLS FOR SERVICE

ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN

ARRESTS ARRESTS ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN TICKETS WRITTEN



TYRONE

JANUARY 118

FEBRUARY 84

MARCH 120

APRIL 0

MAY 0

JUNE 0

JULY 0

AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0

322

JANUARY 21

FEBRUARY 14

MARCH 26

APRIL 0

MAY 0

JUNE 0

JULY 0

AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0

61

JANUARY 0

FEBRUARY 1

MARCH 2

APRIL 0

MAY 0

JUNE 0

JULY 0

AUGUST 0

SEPTEMBER 0

OCTOBER 0

NOVEMBER 0

DECEMBER 0

3

CALLS FOR SERVICE

ARRESTS

TICKETS WRITTEN



COMMUNICATION #2 
 

Fire service report – May 10, 2023 

 
 
 















UNFINISHED BUSINESS #1 
 

Andrew Zourab request to appeal his fire service 
charge. 

 
 



Rectangle



Rectangle





Rectangle



Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle







Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle

Rectangle



NEW BUSINESS #1 
 

Milarch Agri-business Special Land Use request. 
 
 
 



May 9, 2023 

Township Board 

Tyrone Township 

8420 Runyan Lake Road 

Fenton, MI 48430 

Subject: Agenda Request – Milarch Agri-business Special Land Use 

Dear Township Board Members: 

During our meeting on April 11, 2023, an application review and public hearing were held regarding a 

request by Mike Milarch for a Special Land Use permit to operate an agri-business at 9149 Center Road/ 

Parcel # 4704-17-300-008.  The proposed agri-business would include the processing of trees sourced 

from the subject property, other owner-controlled properties, and other sources, into wood products to 

be displayed and sold from the subject property. 

Following the required public hearing, Steve Krause moved to recommend conditional approval of the 

site plan, and special land use for the Milarch Agri-business application with conditions. Kurt Schulze 

supported the motion.  The motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Conditions: 

1.             Applicant shall provide an annual report (for the first three years at minimum) of the 

percentage of trees harvested from his property, other owner-controlled properties, and other sources.  

2.             Applicant shall provide a detailed, scaled drawing of the parking lot showing at least two 

barrier-free parking spaces (to be incorporated into the site plan). 

3.             Applicant shall provide lighting details to ensure compliance with Tyrone Township’s Lighting 

Ordinance (A statement indicating that all on-site lighting will comply will all applicable Township 

Ordinances in the use statement and noted on the site plan). 

4.             Applicant shall update the use statement and site plan to indicate that the business 

identification sign will be no larger than the maximum allowed of six feet and that all other on-site 

signage complies with all applicable Township ordinances. 

5.             Applicant shall add details to the site plan on refuse management (provide details on waste 

disposal methods in the use statement). 

6.             The Township Board should determine if an engineer review is required to determine if there 

will be any adverse impacts from stormwater.  

7.             Approvals from all agencies having jurisdiction including but not limited to the Livingston 

County Building Department, the Livingston County Drain Commission, the Fire Department having 

jurisdiction (circulation review), and the Livingston County Health Department following approval.  Any 



modifications to the site plan or special land use required by other agencies having jurisdiction may 

require a major or minor amendment to the site plan and special land use, as determined by the 

Planning Commission Subcommittee. 

8.             If the applicant wishes to host special events, they may be considered as minor amendment(s) 

to the use statement and site plan, pending Planning Commission review and approval. Pending approval 

of this amendment, the Board should discuss the potential requirement for liability/event insurance. 

 

NOTES:  All conditions pertinent to the favorable recommendation have been addressed or are 

otherwise noted below.  Additional/continuing review from outside agencies having jurisdiction may be 

required following final site plan approval.  Any agency reviews/approvals requiring modification(s) to 

the approved site plan may require major and/or minor site plan amendment(s) per Section 23.13 of the 

Zoning Ordinance.  All requested site plan and use statement modifications have been made to the 

satisfaction of the Planning Commission Subcommittee.  The Township Board should determine if any 

drainage by the Township Engineer is necessary. 

 

Respectfully, 

Rich Erickson 

Chairman, Planning Commission 

























CI

CI

CENTER ROAD

CENTER ROAD

C
LI

EN
T:

JOB NO.

P.M. 
CK BY:

Know what's below.
      Call before you dig.

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE SHOWN IN
AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND HAVE
NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY
THE OWNER OR ITS REPRESENTATIVE.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING WORK,
AND AGREES TO BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE
FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH
MIGHT BE OCCASIONED BY THE
CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO EXACTLY
LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.
NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER
SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY OF THE
WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE
WORK, OF ANY NEARBY STRUCTURES, OR

OF ANY OTHER PERSONS.

COPYRIGHT  C  2023 THE UMLOR GROUP;
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

DATE:

SHEET NO.

REVISIONS

DR BY:

SCALE

These documents are instruments of
service in respect of  the Project and any
reuse without written verification or
adaptation by The Umlor Group (UG)
for the specific purposes intended will
be at Users sole risk and without liability
or legal exposure to UG and User shall
indemnify and hold harmless UG from
all claims, damages, losses and
expenses including attorneys' fees
arising out of  or resulting therefrom. Any
such verification or adaptation will entitle
UG to further compensation at rates to

be agreed upon by User and UG.

L
A

N
D

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T

M
L

O
R

4
9
2
8
7
 W

E
S

T
 R

O
A

D
 W

IX
O

M
, 
M

I 
4
8
3
9
3

T
E

L
 2

4
8
.7

7
3
.7

6
5
6
 -

 F
A

X
 8

6
6
.6

9
0
.4

3
0
7

N

CI

BENCHMARKS

EXISTING AND DEMOLITION PLAN 1"=20'

PROPOSED PLAN 1"=20'

*MINIMUM R.O.W. PAVEMENT CROSS-SECTION
CENTER RD.

·

·

·

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID: 4704-17-300-026 9121 CENTER ROAD TYRONE, TWP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID: 4704-17-300-008 9149 CENTER ROAD TYRONE, TWP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STONE LANDSCAPE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. DRIVEWAY MONUMENT WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID: 4704-17-300-026 9121 CENTER ROAD TYRONE, TWP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID: 4704-17-300-008 9149 CENTER ROAD TYRONE, TWP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW (66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET   OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED BEARING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WETLAND LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GUARDRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CURB/PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
652

AutoCAD SHX Text
656.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNDERGROUND GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNDERGROUND CABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SECTION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM INLET/CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GATE VALVE IN WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.   DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROUND STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PARCELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. COMMUNICATION RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELEPHONE RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SANITARY VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAGPOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNKNOWN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CONC. MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND PK NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNDERGROUND FIBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. COMMUNICATION HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TELE. MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GAS MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ELEC. MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN. MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TREE (DECIDUOUS/CONIFER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED BEARING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FRESHWATER WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GAS MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. AIR CONDITIONER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. COMBINED MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. COMBINED SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STORM CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. UNKNOWN UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STEAM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PUBLIC LIGHTING ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STEAM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PUBLIC LIGHTING MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MONITORING WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U656.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U(NAVD 88 DATUM):

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #104 SET BENCHMARK ON FOUND  CAPPED IRON ROD. ELEV = 992.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE LANDSCAPE WALL RELOCATED AS DIRECTED BY OWNER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. DRIVEWAY MONUMENT WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AND RELOCATE LANDSCAPE AS DIRECTED BY OWNER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD GRAVEL TO EDGE OF DRIVEWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE GRAVEL AND SUBGRADE AS NEEDED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" 5E3 HMA 2" 4E3 HMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" 21AA AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" CLASS-II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN-SITU SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
*OR MATCH EXISTING CROSS-SECTION, WHICHEVER IS GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. LINE OF SIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT ASPHALT APPROACH. SEE CROSS SECTION DETAIL THIS SHEET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9149 CENTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIKE MILARCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9149 CENTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENTON, MI 48430

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
230208

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/27/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN 4 NORTH. RANGE 6 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIVINGSON COUNTY, MI

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT FULL DEPTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: : IDENTIFY ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.   PROVIDE TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL AS REQUIRED. SITE DISTANCES PER FIELD MEASUREMENT      FEBRUARY 22, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD GRAVEL AND REGRADE AS NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGRADE GRAVEL WITH 4% SLOPE FROM EDGE OF ASPHALT TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT DISTANCE 757'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT DISTANCE 894'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT DISTANCE 757 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT DISTANCE 894 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF SIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF SIGHT



March 19, 2023 
 
Tyrone Township Hall 
8420 Runyan Lake Rd 
Fenton, Mi. 48430 
810-629-8631 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
My name is Mike Milarch, owner of Bear Naked Wood LLC., and I am writing you today to apply 
for a special land use permit. Last year, you had approved me for a Home Occupation Permit 
and as my business is growing, so to are my needs for more options for my business. I had also 
applied, and was permitted by the county, to have our new pole barn (40’x140’) built (see 
attached final inspection approval). We currently use the existing pole barn for our horse and 
also my workshop. This farm however, is still our primary residence and always will be, yet I 
want to grow my business with a small staff and the have the ability for my customers to shop 
in my small showroom. Having this facility will not only grow my business but also give me the 
means to live and support my family as this business is my only means to income. 
 
Bear Naked Wood LLC. is a custom woodworking business, where I supply and sell not only raw 
live edge wood material, but also custom finished products such as countertops, fireplace 
mantles, shelves, chainsaw carvings, benches, lamps, charcuterie boards and home décor. 
Currently, my customers come over by appointment to select materials, place orders and pick 
up finished products. I also offer a millworks division… including sawmilling, slab leveling, 
planing, jointing, glue-ups  and sanding  services. Customers can drop off material to me and I 
will have it all ready for them in a timely manner. Customers will not use any of my equipment 
whatsoever. Customers will not be allowed near any machinery at any point while in use. Safety 
is of the utmost importance. 
 
I produce my own wood products by purchasing logs from local tree service & mulching 
companies as well as harvesting our own trees directly from our farm here in Fenton, but also 
multiple other family owned properties within the state.  I typically provide myself with more 
than half of my products from our farms. As I remove trees from our property in Fenton, I 
intend to plant new trees to be able to replenish and sustain future business. My family has 
grown and sold wholesale trees for almost 85 years and having a horticultural degree from 
Michigan State University gives me plenty of knowledge and experience in supplementing my 
own business. 
Working in forestry (slab & lumber sales), I own two sawmills and one wood drying kiln (one on 
Fenton farm and other on Rose City farm) to produce our raw lumber and slab material 
products for usage. Within my workshop I have my own “finish room” where I keep minwax 
stains and and polyurethane sealers (stored within a fire safe metal cabinet). I do not keep any 
toxic chemicals and I do not have a spray booth, nor do I intend to. The finish room is well 
ventilated and both heated and cooled. I have three fire extinguishers  and two smoke 
detectors within the work shop, along with a water hydrant and hose directly inside of the barn 



for any possible fire issues. I dispose of any possible flammable rags or brushes by rinsing, 
drying and disposal in metal trash cans. I do not use a dumpster as we use residential trash 
service which has easily handled the amount of waste that I may have. Any other wood scraps 
get burned in our fire pit or wood stove within our residence and workshop. I have spoken to 
the local fire chief and we are “doing everything right” per our conversation and he will sign off 
on fire inspection once our completed final inspection is done on our internal build out. 
 
The majority of my equipment and tools are in our smaller pole barn where I have made my 
workshop. The workshop section of the barn is fully insulated, thus keeping noise levels to a 
minimum for not only my residence but also the neighbors that live nearby. Our closest 
neighbor (9215 Center Rd) is 640’ to the south east of our barn and he has told me already that 
he can’t ever hear my equipment running. Our other neighbors are further away… 787’ to 9121 
Center Rd., and 860’ to 9045 Center Rd. The other portion of this barn is for our horse and 
other animals we are adding as we move forward with our farm life. I will have two pieces of 
equipment in our  newer barn for the business which will be used for sanding and planing of 
products.  
My sawmill is located approximately 200’ to the north of our barns and out in a part of the farm 
so that is away from normal traffic flow. Our intentions are to build a small covered area for 
sawmill and wood inventory (lean to, approximately 20x30 with roof and half covered walls to 
allow for proper air flow for wood slabs, yet keep rain and other inclement weather off of the 
wood and sawmill). This covered shelter will allow me to cut wood material throughout the 
season and during inclement weather. 
 
My goal with the special land use permit is to turn approximately 40% of our new barn into a 
showroom so that I can display and sell products in a climate controlled environment. I would 
able to have customers not only place and pick up orders, but to also offer a warm and cozy 
shopping experience while they are here. The showroom portion of the newer barn would be 
40x50, while my design office, storage and facilities would be approximately 32x40 and the 
balance of the barn will be used for storage of wood slabs, tractor, lawnmower, personal tools 
and supplies and also our planer, sander & vacuum for our business.  
I am NOT trying to make a large scale business with hundreds of shoppers but rather, would like 
to make it a small, fun place to shop for customers while also designing and ordering custom 
furniture products.  
 
Our showroom hours will be Tues.-Sat. 10am-6pm and Sunday 11am-4pm and our operating 
hours for building and assembling will be Mon.-Fri. 8am-7pm and Sat. 8am-5pm.  My showroom 
will typically never have more than 3-5 customers at a time inside. I will have a 4’ wide concrete 
sidewalk leading to showroom entrance as well as lights under porch canopy for any night time 
situations. All on-site lighting will comply with all applicable Township Ordinances. I have 
parking available for a minimum of 6 vehicles in our customer parking area and 4 available for 
staff parking. We also have a large area (70x140) in which I have sufficient turn around area, 
parking for my trailers and additional parking for customers and or staff. This area can also be 
used for our special events parking at any given time. All parking and drive areas are built with 



21AA limestone. I have also installed LED lighting on outside of barn for proper visibility in 
customer parking area during night time hours of operation (primarily winter months). 
I am planning to have a maximum of five full time employees (4 in workshop & 1 in showroom) 
eventually working at our location. Employees would only be working on weekdays and I will be 
handling all weekend sales. I also travel to art shows on a regular basis, so we typically will be 
closed on the weekends when we are out of town.  
We will have five fire extinguishers throughout our new barn along with 8 smoke detectors and 
also water available anytime within the barn. Emergency exit signs with lights will be added 
above each door as well. 
 
Per Livingston County Road Commission, I have had engineered drawings completed for our 
driveway approach that is to be converted to a commercial approach in lieu of residential. We 
will make any needed changes to our entrance per the Road Commission regulations.  
 
We would like to have a small permanent sign near our driveway. Our sign would be no larger 
than 5’ tall and 7’ long for the sign itself and would be supported by 2 cedar posts installed 42” 
into the ground. The cedar post structure holding the sign would be 6’ tall overall due to the 
slope of the ground. We would also like to have 4 solar powered spotlights in total to help with 
lighting in the winter months when daylight hours are at a minimum. These lights will be 
installed at the top of the sign frame as to direct light downwards on to sign. The sign will 
comply with all Township Ordinances.  
 
In the future, we would possibly like to entertain several possible options for growth as well…  
 
1. I would like to be able to have small special event classes (max 15 people) available on a 
monthly basis for things like:  building a bird house, build a charcuterie board, pictures with 
Santa and so on. This would happen right inside our showroom as we would move products 
aside and set up several tables for our event. We will have a unisex restroom available for any 
of these class sessions. 
 
2. In addition to the special event class, we want to offer a photography room/space for local 
photographers, giving them a place to rent so as to allow for special event or family photos 
either in designated spaces on our property outdoors or even indoors when inclement weather. 
This could be available daily from 10-6pm. This would be a dual photography room/space 
where we can stage our own products for photos as well as people taking family photos, 
graduation photos, etc. 
 
3. We would like to be able to hold a special public sales event twice per year. We are thinking 
of a spring and late fall event to boost sales. We would have a maximum of 20 other vendors 
bring their hand made products and set up their 10x10 tents in our parking area to hold a small 
market (similar to a farmers market event). We would have 4-6 temporary bathrooms brought 
in and special designated parking right on our farm. Events would take place on a weekend with 
hours of 10-6 on Saturday and 10-4 on Sunday. We would have special field/grass parking 



available for approximately 75 cars in the case of a special event. We would file for any special 
permits for the event and also have any necessary insurance binders for the individual events. 
 
My business is continuing to grow and being able to have this opportunity would be not only a 
great opportunity for us but also the community, as it will give a very unique space for people 
to visit and shop at a local rustic woodworking business.  
 
Thank you for your consideration in the next steps to my business and hopefully allowing me to 
grow my business into something that we can all be proud of. I look forward to your response 
in this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mike Milarch 
Bear Naked Wood LLC. 
 



 
 

             
 
March 17, 2023 
 

 
Jason Fleis, P.E. 
The Umlor Group 
49287 West Road 
Wixom, MI  48393 

 
Re:  Bear Naked Wood (9149 Center Road), Tyrone Township, Section 17 
 
Dear Jason: 

 
I have completed the review of the revised plans, dated March 3, 2023, for the above-
referenced project and have determined the plans to be in substantial compliance with our 
commercial driveway approach specifications. 
 
Before a permit can be issued, a contractor will need to be selected and the selected 
contractor will need to submit a certificate of insurance containing the following language: 
“The Board of Livingston County Road Commissioners, the Livingston County Road 
Commission, and their officers, agents, and employees are listed additional insured parties 
with respects to General Liability.”  

It will be noted on the permit that the existing identification sign will need to be relocated 
outside of the Center Road right-of-way. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
Sincerely, 
 

 
        Kim Hiller, P.E. 

Utilities and Permits Engineer 
 

 Cc:  File 
        Ross Nicholson, Tyrone Township (via email) 
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Stephen F. Crane  Chairman Kevin T. Spicher  Vice Chairman         Paul S. Funk  Member 
Steven J. Wasylk  Managing Director            Jodie M. Tedesco  County Highway Engineer                 Trevor J. Bennett  Director of Operations 

3535 Grand Oaks Drive  Howell, Michigan 48843-8575 
Telephone: (517) 546-4250  Facsimile: (517) 546-9628 
Internet Address:  www.livingstonroads.org 

Livingston County Road Commission 
 



 

Benjamin R. Carlisle, President   Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President   John L. Enos, Vice President 

David Scurto, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal 

Paul Montagno, Principal,   Megan Masson-Minock, Principal,    Laura Kreps, Senior Associate 

Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 

February 16, 2023 

Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and 
Final Site Plan Review 

for 

Tyrone Township, Michigan 
 

PETITION INTRODUCTION 
 

Applicant: Mike Milarch 

Owner: Mike and Becky Milarch 

Request: 
Special land use and combined preliminary and final site plan for an 
agribusiness use 

Plan Date: No date 

Use Statement 
Date: 

February 2, 2023 

 

PETITION DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting a special land use and combined preliminary and final site plan for 
a new agribusiness operation.  The proposed operation would represent an expansion of an 
existing home occupation for custom woodworking. 

The agribusiness would include additional production workspace, showroom, photography 
studio, and parking.  The agribusiness would also host monthly and seasonal special events. 

The use statement indicates that the agribusiness would use harvested trees from this property 
and from tree services and mulch companies. 

Agribusinesses are an accessory use to an agricultural use of land in FR Farming Residential 
districts.  As defined in the Zoning Ordinance, at least 50 percent of the agricultural product, in 
this case, trees need to come from the property or other properties controlled by the 
agricultural operator. 

The Planning Commission reviews special land use and site plan applications and makes a 
recommendation, and the Township Board makes the final decision.  

 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

2 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

Address: 9149 Center 

Location: North side of Center, between Old US-23 and Linden 

Parcel Number: 4704-17-300-008 

Lot Area: 
~34.0 acres (net) 

~34.5 acres (gross) 

Frontage: ~653 feet along Center 

Existing Land Use: Single-family dwelling, Home occupation (custom woodworking) 

 

Aerial of the Site 

  
  



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

3 

ZONING 
 
The site is within the FR Farming Residential district.  A summary of the intent of that district is 
below. 

Current Zoning: FR Farming Residential 

The intent of the FR Farming Residential District is to protect lands best suited 
to agricultural uses from the encroachment of incompatible uses, while 
designating an area appropriate to the type of single-family residential 
development that does not alter the general agricultural character of the 
district. Moreover, the intent also is to protect vital natural resources, including 
wetlands, inland lake water quality, groundwater supplies, fertile and stable 
soils, and significant stands of wood lots and vegetative cover.  Lands in the FR 
rand RE District are not likely to be served with centralized public water and 
sewer facilities. 

 

Current Zoning Map 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP  
 
The site is within the Planned Industrial Research Office and Planned Commercial Industrial 
areas.  Summaries of the intent of those areas are below. 

  

FR 

MI 

RE 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

4 

Future Land Use 
Map 

Planned Industrial Research Office 

The U.S. 23 corridor is a desirable location for enterprises that require facilities 
to house research laboratories, design studios, technology-oriented product 
development, prototype manufacturing and similar light industrial and 
laboratory uses that require a substantial office adjunct on the same site.  This 
classification is intended to provide a location for those types of uses.  
Occasionally such uses may also include packaging and light assembly 
operations.  Warehousing, assembly, and fabrication may be permitted in the 
PIRO classification when the uses are appropriately located and designed to 
be an attractive neighbor for other nearby uses.  The Township also recognizes 
that some enterprises may require some light assembly operations or product 
packaging on the PIRO site.  However, the primary utilization of floor area will 
be for purposes other than product assembly and packaging.  

Overall, the facilities to be developed in such a use-group will be designed to 
provide an attractive, landscaped site and a pleasing corporate identification 
for the company housed on the site.  Where possible, the uses will be 
developed in a professional business park setting.  Typically, such business 
parks are platted subdivisions or site condominiums with carefully drafted 
deed restrictions and park association bylaws.  The development would be 
designed to accommodate truck traffic and employee parking areas while 
retaining an attractive appearance from adjacent sites and roads.  Loading and 
unloading areas will be screened and concealed to the rear of structures or in 
screened side yard areas. 

The design of these facilities will be carefully reviewed so as to control the 
impact from the sites on the remainder of the community.  When a site is 
developed independent of a professional business park, it should be well-
landscaped with appropriate screening in order to provide compatibility with 
other developing businesses in the area and the community as a whole.  Truck 
traffic routes will be considered and planned so that other traffic in the 
Township is not unnecessarily impeded while the freight trucks are provided 
with reasonable paths to and from their destinations.  The Township intends 
that businesses established in the PIRO area will be attractive, clean corporate 
citizens. In particular, the Planning Commission intends that pollution sources 
such as air, water, noise, odor, and light emissions will be controlled and will 
not become offensive to other land uses in the Township. 

 Planned Commercial Industrial 

 

South of the area planned as PCI is land that has potential access to sanitary 
sewer, and while farther from the Center Road/US 23 interchange, has both 
good access via Old U.S. 23 and good visibility from the freeway.  Along Old 
U.S. 23 south of Center Road, are several developed sites including 
Pennington Gas, Action Watersports, small industrial uses, and construction 
contractors, that are land extensive operations that could be characterized as 
heavy commercial or light industrial.  The Planned Commercial Industrial plan 
category anticipates development of similar uses that do not need to be at an 
interchange but do depend on traffic and paved primary road access. 
Development should be in a PUD environment with care given to generous 
landscaping, attractive high-quality architecture, and the appearance from the 
road, consistent with the character of the Township.  Protections should be 
required during site plan review to minimize any negative impacts on the 
residential neighbors. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

5 

Future Land Use Map 

   

 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES 

 
The surrounding properties are used for single-family dwellings, agricultural uses, or are 
undeveloped. 

 North East South West 

Surrounding Zoning 
FR Farming 
Residential 

FR Farming 
Residential 

FR Farming 
Residential 

M-1 Light 
Manufacturing 

FR Farming 
Residential 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 

Agricultural fields 
Woodlands 

Agricultural fields 

Single-family 
dwellings 

Single-family 
dwellings 

Agricultural fields 

Future Land-Use Map  
Planned Industrial 
Research Office 

Planned Industrial 
Research Office 

Planned 
Commercial 

Industrial 

Medium-density 
Single Family 

Planned Industrial 
Research Office 

Planned Industrial 
Research Office 

Planned 
Commercial 

Industrial 

 

  

Planned Industrial 
Research Office 

Medium-density 
Single-family 

Planned Commercial 
Industrial 

High-density 
Attached Residential 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

6 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Topography:   The site is relatively flat, with a general slope downwards from east to west. 

Wetland:   According to the EGLE Wetlands Map Viewer, there is a small wetland area 
on the southern portion of the site. 

Woodland:   There are mature trees located throughout the site, including woodland 
areas along the western side of the site and in the northeastern portion of the 
site. 

Soil:   According to the USDA National Resource Conservation Service, a majority 
of the soils on the site are Hillsdale-Miami loam and Wawasee loam, which 
are generally compatible with development. 

Water: There are no waterbodies on the site, but the wetland area may hold water 
during spring or during rainy seasons. 

Items to be Addressed:  Wetland and woodland areas should be clearly defined on the site plan. 

 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, AND SETBACKS 
 

The proposed site, buildings, and improvements must meet the developmental standards for 
the zoning district in which it is located. 

The rough location of buildings to be used for the workshop and showroom and the rough 
location of parking are shown on the site plan.  The site plan is not drawn to scale, and distances 
are not dimensioned. 

Developmental Standards 

Minimum/Maximum Required FR Proposed 

Lot Area 3 acres 34.0 acres 

Lot Width 250 feet 653 feet 

Building Height 30 feet unknown1 

Building Coverage 25 percent unknown1 

Front Setback 150 feet unknown1 

Side Setback 30 feet unknown1 

Rear Setback 75 feet unknown1 

 
1) It appears that the proposed structures meet the developmental standards, but not 

enough information is provided to confirm the dimensions noted above. 

Items to be Addressed:  Additional information, such as scaled drawings or dimensions, added 
to site plan. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

7 

ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
The agribusiness site will be accessed by a single driveway, from Center Road to the south. 

The application notes that a commercial driveway approval will be required from the Livingston 
County Road Commission and that engineered drawings are being prepared. 

The site plan does not describe how wide the driveway will be or how far it is located from the 
western lot line.  Ideally, driveways for commercial uses will be at least 16 feet wide to allow 
incoming and outgoing traffic to pass each other. 

The site plan does not describe what material will be used for the driveway.  Paved driveways 
are not required for agribusiness uses.  The type of material could have an impact on stormwater 
management, especially if it is close to a lot line.  It would be ideal for at least of a portion of the 
driveway along Center Road to be paved. 

The driveway will terminate in a parking area which should allow adequate space for large 
vehicles to turn around. 

Items to be Addressed:  1) Approval of the driveway by the Livingston County Road Commission.  
2) Circulation review and approval by the fire inspector and Township Engineer.  3) Additional 
details, such as driveway width and materials, added to site plan.  

 

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

 
The site plan shows an area for parking to the north of the building. 

The use statement indicates there will be adequate space for at least 25 vehicles. 

The site plan does not show the configuration of the parking lot or dimensions for parking 
spaces of maneuvering lanes.  It is not possible to determine if the parking lot will be consistent 
with the layout standards of §25.02 Off-street Parking Space Layout, Standards, Construction, 
and Maintenance. 

Parking lots with 26 spaces to 50 spaces must provide at least 2 barrier-free spaces.  It is not 
clear in the site plan or use statement if barrier-free spaces are provided. 

Parking surfaces in the FR Farming Residential district do not need to be paved.  The Township 
could require a paved surface as part of special land use approval if it is determined to be 
necessary.  It is not clear in the site plan or use statement what material will be used for the 
parking surfaces. 

Curbing or curb stops are required when parking is adjacent to landscaped areas or sidewalks.  
It is not clear in the site plan or use statement if curb stops are required. 

The use statement indicates that the parking area may be used to set up vendor tents for spring 
and fall special events.  During these events, temporary parking will be accommodated in 
another area.  The site plan does not show the location of this temporary parking. 

Items to be Addressed:  1) Scaled parking lot layout added to site plan.  2) Parking lot must 
provide at least 2 barrier-free parking spaces.  3) Parking surface material to be defined.  4) 
Curbing or curb stops to be provided. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

8 

LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING  
 
The site plan does not include a landscape plan.  Landscaping is required for certain non-
residential uses within single-family zoning districts. 

Although not noted in the site plan or use statement, it appears that the existing trees along the 
boundary of the site will remain.  These trees appear to provide adequate screening from 
adjacent dwellings and the agribusiness workshop/showroom building and parking lot. 

Parking lots with more than 15 spaces are supposed to provide at least 15 square feet of interior 
landscaping for each space.  This landscaping should be located within the parking lot to 
improve safety, direct traffic, and improve appearance, but the Planning Commission can 
approve placement adjacent to the parking lot if doing so achieves the same purpose.  It is not 
possible to determine if this standard has been satisfied.  

Items to be Addressed:  1) Existing vegetation along property boundaries to remain.  2) 
Additional information about parking lot landscaping to be provided. 

 

LIGHTING   

 
The site plan and application do not include a photometric plan, fixture specifications, or other 
details about exterior lighting. 

It is not possible to determine compliance with lighting standards at this time. 

Items to be Addressed:  Lighting details added to site plan. 

 

OUTDOOR ADVERTISING AND SIGNS  
 
The use statement describes the intent to place a sign near the driveway, with a height of 7 to 8 
feet and an area of 24 square feet.  The sign would have 4 solar spotlights. 

The proposed sign area would be consistent with what is allowed for agribusinesses, but the 
proposed height exceeds the 6-foot height allowed. 

The proposed location for the sign is not shown on the site plan.  It is not possible to determine 
compliance with location standards at this time.  The sign would have to be reviewed for 
compliance as part of a separate permit. 

Items to be Addressed:  1) Use statement revised to reference maximum sign height of 6 feet.  
2) Any sign lighting to be pointed down and shielded.  3) Separate permit required for sign. 

 

ESSENTIAL SERVICES 
 
The site will be served by on-site well and sanitary sewer systems.  The locations of existing and 
proposed wells and sanitary-sewer systems are not shown on the site plan. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

9 

The site will be served by electrical service from existing overhead electrical lines to the south 
along Center Road.  The locations of electrical distribution lines within the site and to the 
buildings are not shown. 

The site plan does not show the location of a dumpster enclosure or waste storage.  The 
applicant should clarify how refuse will be managed and include details on the site plan. 

Information is not provided about stormwater management. 

Items to be Addressed:  1) Water and sanitary sewer approval by Livingston County.  2) Location 
of wells and sanitary sewer systems added to site plan.  3) Location of all electrical service lines 
added to site plan.  3) Applicant shall clarify refuse management.  4) Stormwater management 
information added to site plan. 

 

AGRIBUSINESS  §22.05(R) 
 
In addition to the general standards of the Zoning Ordinance, there are specific standards for 
agribusinesses.  These standards, outlined in §22.05(R) Agribusinesses…, are examined below.  

Agribusinesses are defined as a retail or tourism-based operation that is clearly incidental to the 
agricultural use of the property in which at least 50 percent of the agricultural products or 
services offered have been raised or grown on the property (or other controlled property). 

The use statement indicates that some of the trees will be harvested from the property and other 
trees are purchased from tree services and mulch companies.  The percentage of trees being 
used from this property or other property controlled by the applicant should be clarified. 

1. Zoning.  Such uses shall be operated on the same premises as the principal agricultural use 
by the property owner or farm operator.  The allowance and use of such structures and land 
shall not alter the zoning of land in the Farming Residential or Rural Residential zoning 
district, and such use shall not be deemed a commercial activity for zoning purposes. 

Comments:  The site is located within an FR Farming Residential district.  The application states 
that the operation includes harvesting of trees from the site. 

2. Facility Size.  

a. Floor Area.  The total floor area above finished grade (one or two stories) of any agri-
business facility falling into this category, including retail space, shall be no larger than 
10,000 square feet.  The facility may consist of more than one building.  Underground 
space is not limited to, and may be in addition to, the 10,000 square feet of floor area 
provided that it is below pre-existing ground level and has no more than one loading 
dock exposed. 

b. Pre-Existing Buildings.  Building(s) built prior to this amendment may be used for an agri-
business provided that the area dedicated to the agribusiness is limited to 10,000 square 
feet.  The Zoning Board of Appeals may consider variances from setbacks for such a pre-
existing building if it shall first be determined that such extension shall not be harmful to 
public health, safety, or welfare, particularly with regard to surrounding property 
interests.  



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

10 

c. Size Requirements.  The Planning Commission shall have the discretion to alter the size 
requirements if deemed necessary due to the requirements of the particular use, site 
considerations, or the potential impacts on adjacent properties.  

d. Exception.  These limitations on facility size shall not apply to structures engaged solely 
in the agricultural use of the site and not involved in the business aspects of the use. 

Comments:  The building plan sketch shows a building with a total floor area of 6,400 square 
feet of ground floor area.  The use statement indicates that a portion of an existing pole barn is 
used as a workshop to support the operation and that an additional lean-to may be constructed.  
Details on other buildings, including floor area, should be added or a note should be added that 
other buildings will not be used. 

3. Facility / Site Design.  The agri-business facility shall be designed to co-exist with the 
surrounding rural and agricultural land uses.  The design of the facility shall achieve the 
following objectives:  

a. The facility and the site shall be designed in a manner that maintains the rural and 
agricultural character of the original property.  

b. There shall be no adverse impacts on adjacent properties.  

c. The Planning Commission shall have the ability to alter some of the standards herein or 
to require higher standards as necessary to protect the rural character of the community. 

Comments:  The proposed agribusiness would be located within the interior of the site, with 
minimal visual impact on surrounding properties or Center Road. 

4. Setback Requirements.  All structures related to the agri-business shall meet the setback 
requirements for the zoning district in which it is located. 

Comments:  It appears that all of the structures related to the proposed agribusiness meet the 
setbacks for the FR Farming Residential district, but it is not possible to confirm without scaled or 
dimensioned site plans. 

5. Public Events.  Participation in Township-wide events at the facility, open to the public, shall 
be allowed.  

Comments:  The use statement indicates an intent to host up to 2 seasonal sales events per year, 
but it is not clear if these are intended to be public or private events. 

6. Private Events.  

a. Special Events.  An applicant who desires to host special events shall indicate as such in 
their application.  They shall indicate the types of events, the frequency and number per 
year, the number of persons expected, the hours and other information as required 
below or by the Planning Commission for the understanding of the request.  

b. Facilities Provisions.  The site plan for the use shall demonstrate how the facility will 
provide for circulation, parking, sanitation, trash collection, noise, and other factors 
during the events.  

c. Approval.  The Township Board shall approve a facility’s ability to host events when it has 
demonstrated the largest event desired by the facility can be handled without significant 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

11 

adverse impacts to adjacent neighbors or Township facilities and services or otherwise 
creating a detriment to public health, safety, or welfare.  

d. Special Conditions.  The special land use approval may specify a maximum number of 
events per year, number of persons per event, and hours for events.  

e. New Permit.  In order to exceed the number of events approved by the Township Board 
or to host an event of increased intensity, the special use permit must be amended.  
Otherwise, a new permit is not required for each event. 

Comments:  The use statement indicates a desire to hold up to 2 special events with up to 20 
vendors and parking for up to 75 vehicles on Saturdays from 10:00 am to 6:00 pm and Sundays 
from 10:00 am to 4:00 pm.  These events would require use of a temporary parking area and 4 
to 6 portajohns.  The proposed locations for the temporary parking and portajohns are not 
shown. 

The use statement also indicates a desire to host small special event classes for up to 15 people 
on a monthly basis.  The potential days or hours for these events are not specified. 

7. Parking.  Parking shall comply with the requirements of Article 25 - Off-street Parking and 
Loading.  Provisions shall be made to allow cars to turn off the road right-of-way and park 
outside of the right-of-way.  Parking lots in the FR and RE districts are not required to be 
paved. 

Comments:  The proposed parking area appears to provide an adequate number of spaces, 
except for the larger special events.  The layout of the parking area is not provided so it is not 
possible to determine compliance with parking standards.  It is not clear what surface will be 
used for the parking area. 

8. Signs.  Signage shall comply with the requirements of Article 27 - Signs.  Agribusinesses are 
permitted one ground sign with a maximum area of 48 square feet and a maximum height 
of 6 feet. 

Comments:  The use statement indicates a desire to have a ground sign with an area of 24 square 
feet (per side) and a height of 7 to 8 feet.  The use statement should be revised to match the 
maximum height of 6 feet. 

9. General Standards.  In addition to the specific standards for Agri-business uses specified 
above, the Planning Commission and Township Board shall consider the following when 
making a determination under this section: 

a. The relationship of the agri-business use to the primary agricultural use on the site. 

b. The duration of use (i.e. seasonal, annual, weekends, everyday, etc.). 

c. Hours of operation. 

d. Relationship of agri-business use and proposed development to the overall size of the 
parcel. 

e. Potential traffic impacts created by the proposed use. 

f. Other potential impacts on the Township or adjacent properties including but not 
limited to lighting, noise, dust, and drainage. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

12 

Comments:  The use statement indicates that some trees will be harvested from the property, 
but it is not clear what percentage of trees used come from this property vs materials purchased 
from tree services or mulching companies.  The percentage of trees harvested from this property 
or other controlled properties should be clarified. 

The use statement indicates that the agribusiness will be open year-round and will hold small 
monthly special events, with up to 15 participants, and larger special (spring and fall) events with 
up to 20 vendors. 

The use statement indicates the showroom will be open Tuesday through Saturday from 10:00 
am to 6:00 pm; building and assembly operations will take place Monday through Friday from 
8:00 am to 5:00 pm; the photography studio will be available daily from 10:00 am to 4:00 pm; 
and special sales events would take place on Saturday from 10:00 am through 6:00 pm and 
Sunday from 10:00 am to 4:00 pm. 

The proposed area to be used for the agribusiness operations, excluding tree harvesting, 
appears to be appropriately-sized for the site. 

The potential traffic impacts appear to be relatively limited.  The anticipated daily trips would be 
slightly higher than a typical single-family dwelling.  The anticipated trips and traffic impacts 
would be most noticeable for monthly events and special events.  The Livingston County Road 
Commission will require certain geometry based on anticipated trips.  Center Road is a paved 
county road. 

Additional information is necessary to determine potential impacts due to lighting, dust, or 
drainage. 

 

APPLICABLE DECISION CRITERIA §23.03/§22.04 
 
The proposed agribusiness operation requires both special land use and site plan review.  The 
decision criteria for those approvals are examined below. 

 

Site Plan Review 

Information that must be included in a site plan is outlined in §23.02 Site Plan Information. 

As noted throughout this report, there is a lot of information missing from the site plan.  Some 
of this information has been noted as necessary to determine compliance with the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Other information that is not necessary can receive a waiver from the Planning 
Commission. 

Comments:  The site plan that has been submitted does not include a lot of information generally 
required for site plans: date, scale, north arrow, location and height of all structures proposed for 
agribusiness use, dimensioned property lines and setbacks, parking and driveway details, 
landscaping details, utility information, location map, stormwater drainage details or narrative, 
trash receptacles, and signature of licensed professional. 

Determination of additional information that is necessary for Planning Commission review and 
what information can be waived. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

13 

Decision criteria for site plan review are outlined in §23.03 Standards for Site Plan Review.  
Comments addressing these standards are included throughout this report and below. 

Comments:  Additional information is necessary in order to determine compliance with site plan 
review standards. 

 

Special Land Use Review 

The general review standards for special land uses are outlined in §22.04 General Review 
Standards for All Special Land Uses and are included below.  Specific standards for 
agribusinesses have been examined in the Agribusiness section of this report.  Comments 
addressing these standards are included throughout this report and below. 

 

A. Master Plan.  The special land use will be consistent with the goals, objectives, and future 
land use plan described in the Township's Master Plan. 

Comments:  The proposed agribusiness is located within an area identified for 
commercial/industrial uses in the Future Land Use Map.  The proposed use would be generally 
consistent with the goal of supporting agricultural operations if it demonstrated that the 
agribusiness is accessory to an agricultural operation. 

B. Zoning District.  The special land use will be consistent with the stated intent of the zoning 
district. 

Comments:  The FR Farming Residential district is intended for agricultural uses, which includes 
agribusinesses as an accessory use.  The Planning Commission subcommittee has determined 
that the proposed use could be submitted for consideration as an agribusiness. 

C. Neighborhood Compatibility.  The special land use will be designed, constructed, operated, 
and maintained to be compatible with, and not significantly alter, the existing or intended 
character of the general vicinity in consideration of environmental impacts, views, aesthetics, 
noise, vibration, glare, air quality, drainage, traffic, property values or similar impacts. 

Comments:  The proposed agribusiness appears to be generally located and designed in a 
manner that would have minimal impacts on the natural environment or the surrounding area. 

Some additional information appears necessary in order to determine potential impacts from 
dust and stormwater. 

D. Environment.  The special land use will not significantly impact the natural environment. 

Comments:  It does not appear that the proposed agribusiness would have a significant impact 
on the natural environment.  The use statement indicates there will be on-site storage and use of 
wood finishes that are generally consistent with what can be found in many households. 

Additional information should be provided to ensure there would not be adverse impacts from 
stormwater runoff or dust. 

E. Public Services.  The special land use can be served adequately by public facilities and 
services such as police and fire protection, drainage structures, water, and sewage facilities, 
refuse disposal and schools. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

14 

Comments:  The proposed agribusiness will be served by on-site well and sanitary sewer 
systems, to be reviewed and approved by the Livingston County Health Department. 

It does not appear likely that there would be a significant impact on police protection, drainage 
structures, schools, or other public services. 

Additional comment on fire protection is deferred to the Fire Chief. 

F. Traffic.  The proposed use shall be of a nature that will make vehicular and pedestrian traffic 
no more hazardous than is normal for the district involved, taking into consideration the 
following… 

Comments:  It does not appear likely that proposed agribusiness would make vehicular or 
pedestrian traffic more hazardous.  Except for special events, the volume of trips generated or 
attracted by the site is likely to be slightly increased from that of a single-family dwelling. 

The Livingston County Road Commission is likely to require some geometry changes to facilitate 
safe vehicular movements. 

G. Additional Development.  The proposed use shall be such that the location and height of 
buildings or structures, and the location, nature and height of walls, fences, and landscaping 
will not interfere with or discourage the appropriate development and use of adjacent land 
and buildings or unreasonably affect their value. 

Comments:  It does not appear likely that the proposed use or structures would interfere or 
discourage development of adjacent properties. 

H. Health, Safety and Welfare.  The proposed use shall be designed, located, planned, and 
operated to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 

Comments:  If the Planning Commission determines that the proposed agribusiness is consistent 
with the standards in the Zoning Ordinances and other conditions it determines appropriate, the 
proposed agribusiness should not create a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare. 

 

SUMMARY & COMMENTS 
 
For site plans and special land uses, the Planning Commission reviews applications and 
forwards it to the Township Board for final action. 

The Planning Commission may determine missing information is necessary to make a decision.  
Missing information that the Planning Commission determines is not necessary for review could 
receive a waiver. 

The Planning Commission could make a favorable recommendation, with or without conditions, 
if it determines decision criteria and developmental standards are met or would be met with 
conditions. 

The Planning Commission could postpone action if it determines missing information is 
necessary for its review or there are significant or too many changes or conditions that would 
be necessary to receive a favorable recommendation at this time.  If this is the case, it should 
direct the applicant to prepare revisions based on its review and provide guidance as to what 
additional information or changes would be necessary. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

15 

The Planning Commission could make an unfavorable recommendation it determines decision 
criteria and developmental standards are not met or could not easily be met with changes or 
conditions.  

 

Planning Commission Decisions/Determinations/Findings 

The list below includes items that require Planning Commission decision, determination, or 
finding. 

1. The Planning Commission should determine what additional information is necessary for 
Planning Commission review. 

2. The Planning Commission should determine if missing information is eligible for a waiver 
because it is unnecessary for substantial review and state the reasons for waiving such 
requirements. 

3. The Planning Commission should determine if the site plan is consistent with §23.03 
Standards for Site Plan Review.  

4. The Planning Commission should determine if the special land use is consistent with §22.04 
General Review Standards for All Special Land Uses. 

 

Potential Conditions 

The list below includes potential conditions that have been identified throughout this report to 
aid in the Planning Commission’s deliberation. 

Additional potential conditions could also be identified before or at the Planning Commission 
meeting. 

1. The percentage of trees harvested from this property or other controlled properties should 
be clarified. 

2. Wetland and woodland areas should be clearly defined on the site plan. 

3. Additional information, such as scaled drawings or dimensions, added to site plan to 
document the proposed setbacks. 

4. Approval of the driveway by the Livingston County Road Commission. 

5. Circulation review and approval by the Fire Inspector and Township Engineer. 

6. Additional details, such as driveway width and materials, added to site plan. 

7. Scaled parking lot layout added to site plan. 

8. Parking lot must provide at least 2 barrier-free parking spaces. 

9. Parking surface material to be defined. 

10. Curbing or curb stops to be provided. 

11. Existing vegetation along property boundaries to remain. 

12. Additional information about parking lot landscaping to be provided. 



Milarch Agribusiness 
Special Land Use and Combined Preliminary and Final Site Plan  
February 16, 2023 
 

 

16 

13. Lighting details added to site plan. 

14. Use statement revised to reference maximum sign height of 6 feet. 

15. Any sign lighting to be pointed down and shielded. 

16. Separate permit required for sign. 

17. Water and sanitary sewer approval by Livingston County. 

18. Location of wells and sanitary sewer systems added to site plan. 

19. Location of all electrical service lines added to site plan. 

20. Applicant shall clarify refuse management. 

21. Stormwater management information added to site plan. 

22. Details on other buildings, including floor area, should be added or a note should be added 
that other buildings will not be used. 

23. Locations of parking and portajohns for special events added to site plan. 

24. Additional information should be provided to ensure there would not be adverse impacts 
from stormwater runoff or dust. 

 

 

 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
04-11-2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT 

1 
 
 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 1 

REGULAR MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES  2 

APRIL 14, 2023   7:00 p.m. 3 

 4 
This meeting was held at the Tyrone Township Hall  5 

 6 
 7 

PRESENT: Rich Erickson, Kurt Schulze, Kevin Ross, Bill Wood, and Steve Krause  8 

 9 

ABSENT: Garrett Ladd 10 
 11 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 7:00 by Chairman Erickson. 12 

 13 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  14 

 15 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Some comments were received regarding residential use solar 16 

panels and utility-scale solar facilities.  17 

 18 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:   Kurt Schulze moved to approve the agenda; Steve Krause 19 

supported. The motion carried.  20 

 21 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 22 

 23 

01/10/23 Regular Meeting Minutes: Steve Krause moved to approve the minutes as amended; 24 

Kevin Ross supported the motion. The motion carried. 25 

 26 

03/14/23 Regular Meeting Minutes: Steve Krause moved to approve the minutes as amended; 27 

Kevin Ross supported the motion. The motion carried. 28 

 29 

Kurt Schulze moved to amend the agenda to move Old Business #2 and 3 ahead of all other 30 

business. Jon Ward supported. The motion carried. 31 

 32 

OLD BUSINESS: 33 

 34 

2) Master Plan: The Planning Commission discussed the timing of the Master Plan and 35 

asked the Planner to provide a timeline. 36 

 37 

3) Utility-Scale Solar Facility Discussion:  The Planning Commission briefly discussed 38 

Utility-Scale Solar Facilities.  They discussed that a six-month moratorium had been 39 

placed on this by the Township Board. This will allow time to amend the ordinance. 40 

 41 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
04-11-2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT 

2 
 
 

  42 

 43 

NEW BUSINESS: 44 

 45 

1) Fenton Concrete Minor Site Plan Amendment: The Planning Commission briefly 46 

discussed the application.  The owner spoke to the Planning Commission explaining 47 

his request to demolish some of the structures on the property. It was determined that 48 

the proposal to demolish an unused portion of the facility could be considered a minor 49 

site plan amendment.  Steve Krause moved to approve the minor site plan 50 

amendment; Jon Ward supported. The request was approved unanimously. 51 

 52 

Kurt Schulze motioned to suspend business and move to the public hearing portion of the 53 

meeting. Kevin Ross supported. The motion carried. 54 

 55 

OLD BUSINESS: 56 

 57 

1) Milarch Agribusiness Special Land Use: Chairman Erickson read aloud the public 58 

notice as published in the Tri-County Times on April 2, 2023. The applicant has been 59 

before the Planning Commission a couple of times and has made requested changes 60 

to the site plan and use statement.   61 

 62 

Doug Lewan of Carlisle Wortman summarized the review they had prepared. The 63 

Planning Commission then discussed the application and asked the applicants some 64 

questions. They discussed the changes they’d like to see to the use statement and site 65 

plan.  66 

 67 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  No comments were received. The Planning Commission received 68 

an email and a phone call from supporters of the proposed special land use. 69 

 70 

Kurt Schulze moved to close the public hearing portion of the meeting. Steve Krause supported 71 

the motion. The motion carried. 72 

 73 

The Planning Commission continued the discussion of the Special Land Use and prepared a list 74 

of conditions to be fulfilled by the applicant.  The conditions were as follows: 75 

 76 

• Applicant shall provide an annual report (for the first three years) of the percentage of 77 

trees harvested from his property.  78 

 79 

• Applicant shall provide a detailed, scaled drawing of the parking lot showing at least two 80 

barrier-free spots. 81 

 82 



TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
04-11-2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT 

3 
 
 

• Applicant shall provide lighting details to ensure he is compliant with Tyrone Township’s 83 

Lighting Ordinance. 84 

 85 

• Applicant shall update his use statement indicating his sign will be no larger than the 86 

maximum allowed of six feet. 87 

 88 

• Applicant shall add details to the site plan on refuse management. 89 

 90 

• The Township Board should determine if an engineer review is required to determine if 91 

there will be any adverse impacts from stormwater.  92 

 93 

• If the applicant wishes to host special events, it would be considered a minor amendment 94 

to the site plan. Pending approval of this amendment, the Board should discuss the 95 

necessity of insurance.  96 

 97 

Steve Krause moved to make a conditional recommendation to approve the Milarch Agribusiness 98 

Special Land Use. Kurt Schulze supported the motion. The motion carried. 99 

 100 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: A member of the public spoke about utility-scale facilities. 101 

 102 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS: Next workshop meeting will be held on April 19, 2023, at 103 

6:00 pm. The Master Plan will be discussed at the workshop. 104 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 pm by Chairman Erickson.   105 



NEW BUSINESS #2 
 

Road improvement agreement for Runyan Lake Rd. 
(White Lake Rd. to township border). 

 
 







NEW BUSINESS #3 
 

Road improvement agreement for Runyan Lake Rd. 
(Gordon Rd. to township hall). 

 
 







NEW BUSINESS #4 
 

Road improvement agreement for Hartland Rd. (Windy 
Ridge to township border). 

 
 







NEW BUSINESS #5 
 

Sewer Rate Policy amendments. 
 
 



 

Resolution #230501 

Tyrone Township Sewer Rate Policy 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

RESOLUTION #230501 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

Tyrone Township Sewer Rate Policy 
 

Rates 

 

From time to time, the Tyrone Township Board will establish Sewer Rates, Meter Costs, Sewer 

Assessment Equity Charges, and other fees via Resolution. 

 

Billing Frequency 

 

Bills for sewer service shall be sent to customers on a quarterly basis.  Bills will be for the current 

quarter of service (i.e., service for January through March will be mailed in January). 

 

For billing for new utility accounts, if the structure is connecting to the sewer, then the billing for 

that account will begin when the sewer connection permit is finalized.   

 

Utility Bill Delivery Options 

 

Invoices for the sewer service shall be delivered to customers via US Mail.  A copy is also available 

by electronic mail (e-mail).  Customers who wish for their bills to be e-mailed in addition to being 

mailed will need to submit a request in writing to the Tyrone Township Treasurer’s Department.  

 

Utility Bill Payment Options 

 

Invoices for the sewer service may be paid through the following methods: 

 

• After Hours Drop Box - We encourage payments in the night deposit box located at the 

front of the building, near the main entrance of Township Hall on the west side. Please 

write your phone number and utility bill account number on your check.  If you desire a 

receipt, please enclose a stamped self-addressed envelope with your payment. 

 

• In Person - Bring your utility bill with you to the Treasurer's Department along with 

payment, between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm, Monday through Thursday. 

 

• US Mail - Mail checks payable to: "Tyrone Township", 8420 Runyan Lake Road, Fenton, 

Michigan 48430.  Do not send cash.  If a receipt is desired, please enclose a stamped self-

addressed envelope with your check.  

 

o Payment will be recorded on the date received, not the date it is mailed, postmarked, 

or the date the check is written.  Postmarks will not be accepted as an indication of 

the date paid.  

 



 

Resolution #230501 

Tyrone Township Sewer Rate Policy 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

• Online Payment – Go to www.tyronetownship.us.  Locate the green Pay Now Tab. Click 

on the Utility Billing Payments on left hand side. Enter name and hit search. Enter amount 

paying and click on make payment. Follow the instructions for online payment.  

 

o There is a nominal fee charged for online payments, typically 3% for credit cards 

and $3.00 for electronic checks.  Current rates can be obtained via the township 

website or by contacting the Treasurer’s Office. 

 

Checks are accepted only as a conditional payment.  If not honored and returned by the bank, the 

utility bill remains unpaid and subject to fees, penalties, and/or interest.  The returned check fee 

may change over time.  The Township will assess the returned check fee approved by the Township 

Board if a check is returned as unpaid (currently $45 at the time of Rate Policy adoption).  Future 

payments will be applied to outstanding returned check fees, penalties, and/or interest prior to 

crediting your utility bill. 

 

Late Fees 

 

Sewer O&M Utility Bill payments not received by the specified due date will have a 10% late fee 

added to the balance of the account.  Late fees are non-reversible without approval from the 

Township Treasurer. The Treasurer may exercise a onetime reversal fee per parcel. Any sewer 

O&M Utility Bill not paid by September 1st of each year will roll over onto the property tax bill 

with an additional 10% penalty applied.  

 

Other Services 

 

All services provided outside the fee schedule and permitted by Tyrone Township Sewer 

Ordinance #43 will be charged on a time and materials basis, plus a 10% administrative fee.   

 

Surcharge Fees 

 

Excess Flow Surcharge shall mean a surcharge established from time to time by resolution of the 

Township Board for sanitary sewage in excess of the REU allowance. 

 

Any sanitary sewer customer whose wastewater discharged to a sanitary sewer exceeds the REU 

allowance shall be charged an Excess Flow Surcharge.  The Township may use any best practices 

method to determine the Excess Flow Surcharge. 

 

• Usage will be measured over a 12 month period. Excess usage surcharges shall be applied 

to the first quarter bill, annually. 

 

o For example, any Excess Flow Surcharge for 2022 (January through December) 

shall be added to the April 1st bill in 2023.  

  

http://www.tyronetownship.us/


 

Resolution #230501 

Tyrone Township Sewer Rate Policy 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

• Allowed usage will be based upon the total allowable daily flow, measured by the gallons 

used and REUs assigned to the property. Allowable flow is measured by: 

 

o Sewer: 210 gallons per day per REU assigned to the property as set forth by the 

EQUIVALENT UNIT FACTOR TABLE (Appendix A) of Sewer Use and Rate 

Ordinance #43. 

 

• If a lapse in data occurs and there are 2 or more actual readings available, then the total 

usage amount will be divided evenly over the days where the data is not recorded.   

 

RESOLVED BY:   

 

SUPPORTED BY:   

 

VOTE:  

 

ADOPTION DATE: May 16, 2023 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 

adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on May 16, 2023, at which meeting a 

quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the records in 

my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant to and in 

full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as 

amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as 

required thereby. 

 

_________________________________ 

Pamela Moughler 

Township Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVISIONS: 
 
2018 JUNE - General revision 
2023 MAY - General updates 



NEW BUSINESS #6 
 

Historic townhouse mold and pest remediation. 
 
 



 

Tyrone Township Historical Society 
8420 Runyan Lake Road 

Fenton, MI 48430 
www.TyroneHistoricalSociety.org 

TyroneHistory@gmail.com 

        

April 26, 2023 

Dear Tyrone Township Board Members, 

The Tyrone Township Historical Society is requesting funds in the amount of $2,500 to address issues of 

maintenance as it pertains to the attic and interior spaces for the Historic Town House. The maintenance 

outlined below is recommended upon inspection by Orkin on April 26, 2023, to be done prior to the 

building move to mitigate as much pest and mold contamination as possible, and to significantly reduce 

the amount of mold and pests coming with the building to its new location. Addressing these issues will 

also create a safer working environment for our contractors and volunteers during the move as well as 

renovation efforts.  

We are asking for the Tyrone Township Board to consider approval of funding for this work as a much-

needed maintenance item rather than a move expense. Attention to these matters now, as opposed to 

after the move, will help set up the Town House for restoration success and significantly reduce issues 

related to mold, moisture, and pest control. Great care is being taken to implement measures to control 

moisture and pests through the restoration planning process so that these issues are better controlled 

for the future.  

For your review, I have attached Orkin’s assessment, estimate, and images of the Town House attic space 

and interior condition. Outlined below are recommended building maintenance items before the 

building moves that pertain to mold and pest control. Orkin also generously reduced their initial 

estimate by $1,000 as a contribution to the preservation of history in our community.  

Estimate $2,500 

Attic Restoration  

- Remove existing infested insulation in the attic 

- Spray to kill mold in the attic and interior spaces 

Other Pest/Mold Remediation  

- Clean out chimney for pests/debris and install cap to prevent further entry 

- Spray interior walls, and ceiling to kill existing mold spores 

 

Prompt consideration and approval of this funding request is necessary to schedule needed attic 

restoration, mold, and pest remediation in time for the building move on June 8th, 2023. Our sincere 

thanks for your consideration and continued support for the Town House Project.  

Sincerely, 

Sara Dollman-Jersey 

Tyrone Township Historical Society President 

http://www.tyronehistoricalsociety.org/
mailto:TyroneHistory@gmail.com


Prepared For

Sarah Dolman-Jersey
April 26, 2023

Brandon Rogers
Orkin Residential Services
Phone: (248) 802-2788

Email: brogers2@rollins.com

© 2023 Orkin, LLC



Sarah Dolman-Jersey

10408 Center Rd Fenton MI 48430

tyronehistory@gmail.com

(517) 980-4842

10408 Center Rd Fenton MI 48430

Page 2 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Graph Description: Main

Sarah Dolman-Jersey tyronehistory@gmail.com
10408 Center Rd Fenton, MI 48430

(517) 980-4842
Brandon Rogers

Apr 26, 2023

1

Page 3 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Attic Access Chimney

Page 4 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Graph Description: Main

Camera: 01 Camera: 01 Camera: 01

Camera: 01 Camera: 01 Camera: 01

Camera: 01 Camera: 01 Camera: 01

Page 5 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Graph Description: Main

Camera: 02 Camera: 02 Camera: 02

Camera: 02 Camera: 02 Camera: 02

Page 6 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Graph Description: Main

Sarah Dolman-Jersey April 26, 2023

10408 Center Rd Fenton, MI 48430

GENERAL COMMENTS / NOTES

Upon inspection of home noticed rodent tunneling and droppings throughout attic insulation 
and squirrel debris in chimney, mold accumulation in attic and main level of home. What I 
recommend is removing all debris,insulation and dropping in attic, sanitize and treat attic and 
main floor of home for mold, thin install our Orkin them insulation to R40 

*To remove all insulation/ sanitize attic, treat for mold in attic and main level, $2500 *** 
scheduled for may 17th

*To install Orkin therm insulation 11 inches (R40) costs $2500 *****schedule in June after roof 
and ventilation issues are addressed 

If you have any questions or would like to have services scheduled you can contact me directly 
at 2488022788

Thank you for choosing Orkin 
Brandon Rogers 

Page 7 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Page 8 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



Page 9 of 9 © 2023 Orkin, LLC



NEW BUSINESS #7 
 

Resolution to recognize Fenton Youth Shooting 
Association as a nonprofit organization to obtain a 
charitable gaming license. 






